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The nature of the business and its direction
The business concept of Peas Industries AB and its subsidiaries 
(“Peas”) is to build meaningful, profitable companies that 
 integrate people’s needs with the integrity of the planet. Peas 
Industries AB is an investment company that focuses on creating 
long-term value growth by actively owning and developing 
companies. Peas Industries is normally a majority shareholder, 
but it may also own minority shareholdings. 

Please see the section entitled “Our companies” on pages 12-13 
for information on activities at companies where Peas Industries 
has a majority holding, either directly or via wholly-owned 
companies.

Significant events during 2020
An agreement was signed with Altor Fund V (“Altor”) in June 2020 
concerning the sale of a 30% share in OX2 AB. A joint company, 
Xygen Holdco AB, was launched at this time: Peas held a 70% 
stake and Altor held 30%. Peas Industries thus remained the 
majority owner and is continuing its active participation in the 
development of OX2. 

In September 2020, Peas subsidiary Xygen Bidco AB signed a 
financing agreement worth SEK 1,200 million in order to fund the 
completed restructuring operation and ensure that the company 
had a bank overdraft facility that can be used for initiatives such 
as the expansion of OX2 and the acquisition of new projects. 

During the year, OX2 has signed agreements concerning the sale 
of a number of wind power projects in Sweden, Finland and 
Poland totalling 330 MW. Six wind farms totalling approx. 500 MW 
were completed and handed over to customers.

In December, OX2 acquired a 600 MW Finnish project portfolio 
from Tornator.

Biond entered into a strategically important agreement with 
FordonsGas Sverige concerning the supply of 16 GWh of locally 
produced biogas to be used as a fuel for vehicles.

In December, Enstar signed an agreement with Afa Fastigheter 
with regard to supplying the Norstedts building in Stockholm with 
renewable energy for heating and cooling. The system will deliver 
a total heating power of about 400 kW and total cooling power of 
about 500 kW. 

Peas Industries AB held an Extraordinary General Meeting on 18 
December 2020, where it was decided that share capital would 
be reduced by redemption of shares. The total redemption 
payment amounted to SEK 146 million. 

In December 2020, Peas acquired smaller shareholdings in two 
foodtech companies. This is in line with Peas’ ambition: to invest 
in companies that are working with sustainable food production.

Performance and financial position
REVENUES
Revenue for 2020 totalled SEK 5,459.7 million (5,159.6). The 
increase in income is largely explained by the fact that OX2 
completed more projects in 2020 than it did in 2019. For  revenues 
per operation, see Note 5.

COSTS
The costs for goods and project planning during 2020 totalled 
SEK 4,672.4 million (4,476.6). Other external costs during 2020 
amounted to SEK 91.8 million (81.7). The increase in external costs 
compared with the same period in the preceding year is related 
to the fact that operations have expanded. 

Personnel costs for 2020 totalled SEK 279.9 million (224.7). The 
increase in staff costs is explained by the fact that the workforce 
has increased, particularly within OX2. The number of employees 
throughout the entire Group increased by 13%, compared with 
the previous period.

PROFIT
The operating profit for 2020 was SEK 386.4 million (352.5). The 
profit for 2020 amounted to SEK 262.2 million (294.6).

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY
Current assets as at 31 December 2020 amounted to SEK 3,639.7 
million (2,619.6). This increase is due primarily to the increase in 
cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020, which 
amounted to SEK 2,876.8 million (1,147.2). As at 31 December 
2020, other long-term interest-bearing liabilities amounted to 
SEK 1,129.4 million (131.8). The increase in interest-bearing liabili-
ties is attributable to the bank financing that was put into place 
during the year. Current liabilities as at 31 December 2020 
amounted to SEK 1,217.4 million (1,789.8). 

CASH FLOW
The cash flow from operating activities before changes in 
 working capital during the year totalled SEK 326.7 million (286.2), 
and is attributable to accrued profits. The cash flow from operat-
ing activities after changes in working capital in 2020 amounted 
to SEK 493.4 million (418.0). The cash flow from investment activ-
ities during the year amounted to SEK 525.5 million (-112.0) and is 
attributable primarily to the sale of shares in OX2. The cash flow 
from financing activities during the year amounted to SEK 718.0 
million (3.5) and is attributable primarily to loan financing. The 
total cash flow for 2020 amounted to SEK 1,736.9 million (309.5).
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PARENT COMPANY
Overall Group management and administration are part of the 
parent company, Peas Industries AB. The company has imple-
mented organisational changes over the last two years, which 
has meant that certain central functions such as IT, finance and 
HR have been decentralised, and employee working with these 
functions have been moved to the subsidiaries. Revenue during 
2020 amounted to SEK 29.0 million (51.7) and relates primarily to 
internal invoicing of management and other services. The 
 operating loss for 2020 was SEK -9.7 million (-12.7). Profit after 
financial items amounted to SEK 2,412.5 million (-12.3). The 
increase in net financial items is explained primarily by the 
results from the sale of shares in OX2 and dividends from the 
subsidiaries. The profit for 2020 amounted to SEK 2,406.0 million 
(101.0). The parent company’s equity as at 31 December 2020 
amounted to SEK 2,408.7 million (299.6). Cash and cash equiva-
lents as at 31 December 2020 totalled SEK 1,573.7 million (98.1). 
The increase in both equity and cash and cash equivalents is 
 attributable to the sale of 30% of shares in OX2. 

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2020, the number of employees was 239 
(211), of which 38 (37) percent were women. The number of 
employees has increased by 13 percent (50), compared with the 
corresponding period the previous year. The average number of 
employees during 2020 was 225 (176).

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTY FACTORS
The renewable energy industry is dependent on the general 
global economic and political situation. The climate and environ-
mental targets adopted by the EU and individual countries where 
the company operates also affect the opportunities for the 
growth of the company. The renewable energy market is regu-
lated by laws and regulations in respect of both support systems 
and the permit process for establishing turbines, for example. 
The Peas Group is also dependent on the price of electricity. The 
price of electricity is affected by fundamental factors such as 
water access, access to production capacity, fuel prices, prices 
of carbon credits and electricity consumption. The euro rate 
affects the subsidiary’s investment calculations, since the 
turbine suppliers’ costs are in euros. At the same time, the sale 
of wind farms to European purchasers most often takes place in 
euros, which minimises the total exposure to the euro, since 
turbines represent more than 70 percent of the total establish-
ment costs for wind power projects. In each project, currency 
risks are handled in a way which meets the finance policy’s 
requirements for risk minimisation, adapted to the conditions of 
the particular project. The Group’s total inflows and outflows in 
euros in the same period are also taken into account. The loan-
to-value ratio of an investment in a wind farm is normally around 

50-70 percent and, consequently, changes in the interest 
market may affect the Group’s profitability. In most projects, 
however, it is the customer who is responsible for financing risk. 
Note 4 provides a description of financial instruments and risk 
management.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Peas and its subsidiaries are working in conjunction with the 
authorities, suppliers and other stakeholders in the industry on a 
number of research and development projects to develop 
renewable energy. OX2 is also represented on the board of 
 directors for StandUp for Wind, which is a research collaboration 
between Uppsala University and the Swedish Royal Institute of 
Technology that integrates all research related to wind power 
provisioning; and is represented on a reference group for  ongoing 
research projects. Overall, OX2 intends, as far as is possible, to be 
able to contribute to research and development in Sweden 
concerning wind power’s potential for effective  integration of 
energy systems and the environment taking place with great 
consideration for society and technology.

Outlook and trends
LARGE-SCALE RENEWABLE ENERGY
Renewable energy sources spearheaded by large-scale wind 
power have a significant part to play in facilitating the necessary 
transition of the energy system all over the world. Despite the 
world’s uncertain economic situation as a consequence of the 
coronavirus pandemic, global renewable energy development 
was strong in 2020. 

A technology shift to rechargeable solutions for shipping, aircraft, 
heavy vehicles and cars is taking place in the transport sector. 
Energy-intensive operations such as data centres, steelworks 
and cement factories are focusing on renewable electricity to an 
increasing extent and accelerating the energy transition. Growing 
cities, with both people and companies establishing themselves 
in city regions, are making completely new demands of the need 
for electricity and smarter power grids. As new technology prices 
fall and society’s efforts to phase out fossil energy are intensi-
fied, electrification of various industries is progressing at an 
ever-increasing pace. 

Thus the demand for renewable electricity is expected to 
increase by 60 per cent up to 2050, according to Bloomberg New 
Energy Finance (BNEF). 

WASTE RECYCLING 
Society is facing an urgent need to rapidly turn an old, linear 
economy with dwindling natural resources and depletion of 
important ecosystems into a modern, circular economy that 
includes production of new products from different waste flows. 
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The Biond operations create a good business opportunity by 
 efficiently collecting society’s organic waste and meeting a 
growing need for both biogas and bio-fertilizer for the transport 
sector and agriculture. Biond currently runs two waste plants: 
one in Helsingborg and one in Sävsjö. 

LOCAL ENERGY SYSTEMS FOR HOMES AND BUILDINGS
Energy systems will undergo major changes over the next few 
years. Cheaper, more efficient solutions in respect of solar cells, 
wind power and geothermal energy in combination with energy 
optimisation in properties will pave the way for local electricity 
production and facilitate the climate transition through more 
 efficient and sustainable use of energy. We are also seeing a 
development whereby energy consumers are becoming active 
prosumers and helping with the energy system transition by 
producing their own solar electricity, storing energy in batteries 
and ensuring that their own consumption is metered and 
controlled digitally. We also believe this development could 
involve good business opportunities for both Enstar and Utellus.

SUSTAINABLE FOOD PRODUCTION
The food we consume and how it is produced, transported and 
recycled have a major impact on nature, health and our climate. 
The need for circular food production, where there is no waste 
and resources are retained in a cycle, is growing. The corona virus 
pandemic and the unique restrictions it has brought with it have 
meant that manufacturers and consumers all over the world 
have been forced to reassess old ways of cultivating and 
consuming food. Bonbio has developed a concept for the  circular 
production of plant nutrients from food waste and other organic 
waste. The company’s products are in line with conscious 
consumer demands and the global transition to more 
resource-efficient growing methods. 

In conclusion, there is every reason to be optimistic about 
 positive developments for Peas operations in 2021, although 
there are high levels of uncertainty with regard to recent devel-
opments in the Corona pandemic. The transition to renewable 
energy supplies is a long-term and important project for society 
and, despite the market unrest Peas’ largest subsidiary, OX2 
regards the future as being positive. The industry has strong 
political support and is considered by many to be the most 
effective way of reducing global CO2 emissions. Energy compa-
nies and financial investors increasingly regard greater owner-
ship stakes in renewable energy as being stable and attractive 
infrastructure investment in the long term.

Peas operates in all sectors that are fundamental and socially 
critical today, as well as in the sustainable society of the future, 
which provides good opportunities to continue to develop in both 
the short and long term. 

THE WORK OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE YEAR
At the 2020 Annual General Meeting, Johan Ihrfelt (Chairman), 
Thomas von Otter, Anna-Karin Eliasson Celsing and Johan 
 Wieslander were re-elected as ordinary members of the Board 
for the period until the end of the next Annual General Meeting. 
During 2020, the Board of Directors of Peas Industries AB held 
nine Board meetings.

PROPOSAL FOR ALLOCATION OF EARNINGS (SEK)
The following earnings are at the disposal of the Annual General 
Meeting:

Unrestricted equity 2,582,305

Net profit for the year 2,406,042,469

Total 2,408,624,774

Buyback of shares SEK 10,793 per share 41,433,713

The Board proposes the following sum be 
carried forward to new account 2,367,191,061

Total 2,408,624,774

As regards the buyback of shares, it is estimated that 3,839 
shares will be bought back.

Please refer to the Income Statements and Balance Sheets, Cash 
Flow Statements and additional information that follow for the 
rest of the parent company’s and Group’s results. All amounts 
are expressed in SEK thousands unless otherwise indicated.

Statement of the Board concerning 
the proposed dividend
JUSTIFICATION
The Group’s equity has been calculated in accordance with the 
EU-approved IFRS standards and their interpretation (IFRIC), and 
in accordance with Swedish law and by the application of the 
Council for financial reporting, RFR 1 (Supplementary Accounting 
Regulations for Corporations). The parent company’s equity has 
been calculated in accordance with Swedish law and application 
of the Council for financial reporting, RFR 2 (Accounting for legal 
entities). The Board considers that there is full coverage of the 
company’s restricted equity after the proposed distribution of 
profits. The Board also finds that the proposed dividend to share-
holders is justifiable in accordance with the assessment criteria 
laid down in the Swedish Companies Act, chapter 17, section 3, 
clauses 2-3. The Board wishes to emphasise the following:
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Peas Industries AB will hold its Annual General Meeting on 27 April 
2021 at the company’s premises at Lilla Nygatan 1 in Stockholm. 
The annual report will be available on the Peas website from 
15 April 2021.

KEY FIGURES, EARNINGS AND POSITION FOR PEAS INDUSTRIES AB
SEK thousand 2020 2019 2018

Revenue 5,459,656 5,159,566 4,364,667

Operating profit 386,372 352,543 335,465

Profit after financial items 343,359 349,764 356,388

Operating margin 7% 7% 8%

Balance sheet total 3,811,011 2,800,035 1,926,642

Equity ratio1) 37 % 30% 33%

Return on equity2) 23 % 40% 50%

Return on capital employed3) 26 % 37% 44%

Average number of employees 225 176 126

1)  Equity in relation to the balance sheet total
2)  Net earnings for the year divided by average equity
3)  Operating profit after financial items plus financial expenses in relation to average capital employed 

THE NATURE AND SCOPE OF THE OPERATIONS AND THE ASSOCIATED RISKS 
The Board is of the opinion that the company’s and the Group’s 
equity after the proposed buyback of shares will be sufficiently 
large in relation to the nature and scope of the operations and 
the associated risks. In this context, the Board takes into 
account, inter alia, the company’s and the Group’s equity ratio, 
historical trends, budget trends, investment plans and the state 
of the economy. 

CONSOLIDATION NEEDS, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION IN 
GENERAL
The Board has undertaken a comprehensive assessment of the 
status of the company and the financial situation of the Group 
and their ability to meet their commitments. The proposed 
buyback of shares amounts to approx. 2 percent of the compa-
ny’s equity and approx. 3 percent of the Group’s equity. The 
Board is of the opinion that the earnings capacity of the Group is 
satisfactory. Against this background, the Board considers the 
company and Group are in a good position to take advantage of 

future business opportunities and to withstand any losses. 
Planned investments have been taken into account when 
 determining the proposed buyback of shares, and this will not 
adversely affect the ability of the company and the Group to 
make further commercially justified investments according to 
the plans that have been adopted.

LIQUIDITY
The proposed buyback of shares is not expected to affect the 
company’s and the Group’s ability to honour their payment 
 obligations at the correct time.

SUSTAINABILITY
In accordance with chapter 6, section 11 of the Swedish Annual 
Accounts Act, the Company has chosen to establish the statu-
tory sustainability report as a separate report from the annual 
report. The Sustainability Report can be found on pages 40-41 of 
this printed document.
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Consolidated Income Statement

Amounts in SEK thousand Note
01/01/2020-
31/12/2020

01/01/2019-
31/12/2019

Operating revenue

Net sales 5 5,459,656 5,159,566

Total revenue 5,459,656
5,159,566

Cost of goods and project planning -4,672,383 -4,476,620

Other costs 6, 7 -91,832 -81,687

Staff costs 8 -279,926 -224,701

Value adjustments of tangible and intangible assets 14, 15, 16 -29,143 -24,015

Total operating expenses -5,073,284 -4,807,023

Operating profit 386,372 352,543

Financial income 9 64,532 39,427

Financial expenses 10 -107,545 -42,206

Profit before tax 343,359 349,764

Tax 13 -81,152 -55,178

Net profit for the year 262,207 294,586

Net profit for the year attributable to:

Parent company shareholders 230,480 292,744

Minority share 31,727 1,842

CONSOLIDATED REPORT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Profit for the period 262,207 294,586

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will be allocated to the income statement

Translation difference from translation of foreign subsidiaries -7,724 -197

Cash flow hedges

Changes in fair value 27 20,187 13,718

Tax attributable to cash flow hedges -4,158 -2,894

Total comprehensive income for the year, net after tax 270,511 305,214

Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Parent company shareholders 238,784 303,372

Minority share 31,727 1,842
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Consolidated report on financial position

Amounts in SEK thousand Note 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

ASSETS
Fixed assets

Other intangible fixed assets 14 101,866 108,268

Plant, equipment and tools 15 11,150 8,993

Other technical installations 16 5,293 5,673

Right-of-use assets 17 14,577 31,638

Other financial assets 38,399 25,910

Total fixed assets 171,286 180,482

Current assets

Work in progress on behalf of others 19 318,311 959,511

Accounts receivable 20 150,978 90,093

Other receivables 27,330 50,263

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 21 229,497 368,579

Derivative instruments 27 36,831 3,931

Cash and cash equivalents 2,876,778 1,147,176

Total current assets 3,639,725 2,619,553

Total assets 3,811,011 2,800,035
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Consolidated report on financial position, cont.

Amounts in SEK thousand Note 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 22 102 102

Other contributed capital 23 72,836 72,836

Retained earnings including profit for the year 1,318,987 770,617

Total equity attributable to parent company shareholders 1,119,222 835,600

Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 2 72,703 7,955

Total equity 24 1,391,925 843,555

Long-term liabilities

Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 26 1,129,371 131,753

Derivative instruments 27 341 –

Deferred tax liability 13 71,938 34,926

Total long-term liabilities 1,201,650 166,679

Current liabilities

Customer advances 28 471,719 385,219

Accounts payable 155,834 283,386

Tax liabilities 4,155 -

Other liabilities 29 95,210 874,505

Accrued expenses and deferred income 30 490,518 246,691

Total current liabilities 1,217,436 1,789,801

Total equity and liabilities 3,811,011 2,800,035
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Consolidated report of changes in equity

Amounts in  
SEK thousand

Share
capital

Miscellaneous 
contributed 

capital
Translation 

reserve
Hedging 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total equity  
attributable  

to parent  
company  

shareholders

Total equity 
attributable to 

non-controlling 
interests

Total  
equity

Opening balance 
as at 1 January 2019 102 72,836 327 -7,141 572,817 632,228 6,713 638,941

Profit for the period 294,586 292,744 1,842 294,586

Other comprehensive 
income

Translation difference 
from translation of 
foreign subsidiaries -197 -197 -197

Cash flow hedges 10,825 10,825 – 10,825

Total other 
comprehensive 
income -197 10,825 - 10,628 – 10,628

Total comprehensive 
income -197 10,825 294,586 303,372 1,842 305,214

Dividend – – -100,600 -100,000 -600 -100,600

Closing balance as at 
31 December 2019 102 72,836 130 3,684 766,803 835,600 7,955 843,555

Amounts in  
SEK thousand

Share
capital

Miscellaneous 
contributed 

capital
Translation 

reserve
Hedging 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total equity  
attributable  

to parent  
company  

shareholders

Total equity 
attributable to 

non-controlling 
interests

Total  
equity

Opening balance 
as at 1 January 2020 102 72,836 130 3,684 766,802 835,600 7,955 843,555

Profit for the period 262,207 230,480 31,727 262,207

Other comprehensive 
income

Translation difference 
from translation of 
foreign subsidiaries -7,724 -5,551 -2,174 -7,724

Cash flow hedges 16,028 16,028 - 16,028

Total other 
comprehensive 
income -7,724 16,028 10,478 -2,174 8,304

Total comprehensive 
income -7,724 16,028 262,207 240,958 29,554 270,511

Dividend -150,669 -150,669 -150,669

Transaction costs* -51,264 -51,264 -51,264

Contributed capital* 601,425 391,499 209,926 601,425

Buy-back of shares -146,901 -146,901 -146,901

Sale of shares** 25,268 -25,268 25,268 25,268

Closing balance as at 
31 December 2020 102 72,836 -7,594 19,712 1,306,868 1,093,955 272,703 1,391,925

* Attributable to the sale of 30% of shares in OX2
** Attributable to the Management incentive programme
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Consolidated cash flow report
 

Amounts in SEK thousand Note
01/01/2020-
31/12/2020

01/01/2019-
31/12/2019

Operating activities

Profit after financial items 341,865 349,764

Adjustments for items not included in cash flow, etc. 32 21,398 27,746

Income tax paid -36,589 -91,285

Cash flow from operating activities 
before changes in working capital 326,674 286,226

Cash flow from changes in working capital

Decrease(+)/increase(-) in work in progress 743,191 -556,292

Decrease(+)/increase(-) in accounts receivable -119,400 292,335

Decrease(+)/increase(–) in current receivables -233,470 -155,695

Decrease(–)/increase(+) in accounts payable 205,699 130,503

Decrease(–)/increase(+) in current liabilities -430,817 420,915

Cash flow from current operations 493,370 417,992

Investment activities  

Disposal of shares 550,161

Acquisition of companies under the same controlling influence - -72,928

Acquisition of financial assets -12,489 -16,442

Acquisition of intangible assets -7,980 -18,069

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets -4,201 -4,570

Cash flow from investment activities 525,491 -112,009

Financing activities

Dividend paid to shareholders -150,669 -100,600

Sale and buyback of shares -121,632 –

Total long-term liabilities 32 1,007,581 116,372

Amortisation of leasing debt 32 -17,234 -12,235

Cash flow from financing activities 718,046 3,537

Cash flow for the year 1,736,907 309,521

Translation difference for cash and cash equivalents -7,304 63

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,147,176 837,592

Cash and cash equivalents at year end 2,876,778 1,147,176
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Parent company income statement
 

Amounts in SEK thousand Note
01/01/2020-
31/12/2020

01/01/2019-
31/12/2019

Operating revenue

Net sales 5 28,978 51,569

Total revenue 28,978 51,569

Operating expenses

Other external costs 6.7 -19,459 -32,999

Staff costs 8 -18,360 -30,563

Value adjustments of tangible and intangible fixed assets 14, 15 -817 -744

Total operating expenses -38,637 -64,306

Operating profit -9,659 -12,737

Other interest income and similar income statement items 9 15,165 418

Interest expenses and similar income statement items 10 -2 -1

Result from participations in Group companies 2,407,018 –

Profit after financial items 2,412,522 -12,320

Year-end appropriations 12 -5,846 141,077

Profit before tax 2,406,676 128,757

Tax on profit for the year 13 -635 -27,730

Net profit for the year 2,406,042 101,027

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REPORT

Profit for the period 2,406,042 101,027

Other comprehensive income:

Total comprehensive income for the year, net after tax 2,406,042 101,027

Comprehensive income for the year 2,406,042 101,027
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Parent Company Balance Sheet

Amounts in SEK thousand Note 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

ASSETS
Fixed assets

Other intangible fixed assets 14 818 1,102

Equipment 15 334 2,587

Participations in Group companies 18 94,733 120,943

Deferred tax assets 13 - 333

Receivables from Group companies 515,800 21,650

Other long-term securities 5,752 194

Total fixed assets 617,437 146,809

Current assets

Current receivables

Accounts receivable 20 - –

Receivables from Group companies 359,456 218,183

Other receivables 11,423 1,841

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 21 846 3,264

Cash and cash equivalents 1,573,744 98,060

Total current assets 1,945,469 321,348

Total assets  2,562,906 468,157
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Parent company’s balance sheet, cont.

Amounts in SEK thousand Note 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Restricted equity

Share capital 22 102 102

Total restricted equity 102 102

Unrestricted equity

Earnings brought forward 2,583 198,457

Net profit for the year 2,406,042 101,027

Total unrestricted equity 2,408,625 299,484

Total equity 24 2,408,728 299,587

Untaxed reserves 25 118,900 142,548

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 759 4,790

Tax liabilities 301 –

Other liabilities 29 284 2,278

Other liabilities to Group companies 29,519 7,062

Accrued expenses and deferred income 30 4,415 11,892

Total current liabilities 35,279 26,022

Total equity and liabilities 2 5 62 906 468,157
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Parent company changes in equity

Restricted equity Unrestricted equity

Amounts in SEK thousand Share capital
Profit or loss 

brought forward
Profit 

for the year
Total 

equity

Opening balance 
as at 1 January 2019 102 162,683 135,775 298,560

Profit for the period 101,027 101,027

Comprehensive income for the year – – 101,027 101,027

Appropriation of earnings in  
accordance with the decision by  
the Annual General Meeting 135,775 -135,775 –

Dividends -100,000 -100,000

Closing balance as at 31 December 2019 102 198,458 101,027 299,587

Restricted equity Unrestricted equity

Amounts in SEK thousand Share capital
Profit or loss 

brought forward
Profit 

for the year
Total 

equity

Opening balance 
as at 1 January 2020 102 198,458 101,027 299,587

Profit for the period* 2,406,042 2,406,042

Comprehensive income for the year - - 2,406,042 2,406,042

Appropriation of earnings in  
accordance with the decision by  
the Annual General Meeting - 101,027 -101,027 0

Dividend -150,000 -150,000

Buyback of shares - -146,901 -146,901

Closing balance as at 31 December 2020 102 2 5 84 2,406,042 2,408,728

* Includes the capital gain from the sale of 30% of shares in OX2.
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Parent Company Cash Flow Analysis

Amounts in SEK thousand Note
01/01/2020-
31/12/2020

01/01/2019-
31/12/2019

Operating activities

Operating profit -9,659 -12,738

Adjustments for items not included in cash flow, etc. 32 817 744

Interest received/paid 326 418

Income tax paid -9,940 -92,340

Cash flow from operating activities 
before changes in working capital -18,456 -103,916

Cash flow from changes in working capital

Decrease(+)/increase(–) in current receivables  8,797 33,876

Decrease(–)/increase(+) in current liabilities -13,560 -22,661

Cash flow from current operations -4,763 11,245

Investment activities

Sale of shares in subsidiaries 1,548,736 100

Shareholders’ contributions paid -14,200 -

Acquisition of intangible assets and financial assets -5,686 -1085

Divestment of tangible assets 1,698 -1,195

Buyback of shares -146,901 -

Cash flow from investment activities 1,383,646 -2,180

Financing activities

Earned dividends and Group contributions 259,407 231 40 7

Dividend paid to shareholders -150,000 -100,000

Repaid/Unpaid internal loans 5,850 2,000

Cash flow from financing activities 115,257 133,407

Cash flow for the year 1,475,684 38,555

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 98,060 59,505

Cash and cash equivalents at year end 1,573,744 98,060
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Note 1 General information

Peas Industries AB, corporate ID number 556829-4515 is a 
limited company that is registered in Sweden and has its regis-
tered office in Stockholm. The address of the head office is Lilla 
Nygatan 1. The business concept of the company and its subsi-
diaries (“the Group”) is to build meaningful, profitable companies 
that unite human needs with caring for our planet. 

Note 2 Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements for Peas Industries AB 
have been prepared in accordance with the EU-approved Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as well as inter-
pretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretation 
Committee (IFRS IC) for periods beginning on or after 01 January 
2020. Furthermore, the Group also applies the Swedish Council 
for Financial Reporting’s recommendation RFR 1 Supplementary 
accounting rules for Groups, which specifies additions to IFRS 
information required under the provisions of the Swedish Annual 
Accounts Act.

Items have been valued in the consolidated financial statements 
at acquisition value, except in the case of certain financial instru-
ments that are valued at fair value and at accrued acquisition 
value. The following is a description of the most important 
accounting policies that have been applied.

New standards and interpretations that have not yet been applied by 
the Group 
A number of new standards and interpretations will enter into 
force for the financial years beginning after 1 January 2021 and 
have not been applied in the preparation of this financial report. 
None of these are expected to have a material impact on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Parent company accounting policies
The parent company Peas Industries AB prepares its annual 
accounts in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act 
(1995:1554) and the Swedish Council for Financial Reporting’s 
recommendation RFR 2 “Accounting for legal entities”. The state-
ment from the Swedish Council for Financial Reporting is also 
applied. Application of RFR 2 means that the parent company 
must apply all EU-approved IFRS standards as far as possible 
within the framework of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and 
the Pension Obligations Vesting Act and take into account the 
relationship between accounting and taxation. The parent 
company applies a method that is based on the acquisition value 
in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act. This 
means that financial assets are valued at their acquisition value, 
less any impairment losses and financial current assets at the 

lower of cost or net realisable value. Financial liabilities are valued 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Principles 
for recognition and removal of financial instruments are equiva-
lent to those applicable for the Group and described above.

No amendments to RFR 2 "Accounting for legal entities” have 
affected the parent company financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO RFR 2 THAT HAVE NOT YET ENTERED INTO FORCE
No future changes in RFR 2 are expected to have any significant 
impact on the parent company financial statements. 

Consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
the parent company Peas Industries AB and the companies over 
which the parent company has a controlling influence (subsidi-
aries). Controlling influence over a company is deemed to occur 
when the parent company has influence over a company, is 
exposed to or has the right to variable returns from its holding in 
the company and has the opportunity to affect the return 
through its influence in the company. Subsidiaries are included in 
the consolidated accounts from the date on which the control 
has been transferred to the Group. They are excluded from the 
consolidated accounts from the date on which the controlling 
influence ceases. Please refer to Note 18 for the composition of 
the Group. If the accounting policies applied in a subsidiary differ 
from the consolidated accounting policies, the subsidiary’s 
accounts are adjusted in order to follow the same principles 
applied by the other Group companies. Internal transactions 
between Group companies, as well as Group balances are 
 eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated accounts.

Operational acquisitions
The acquisition of subsidiaries is reported in accordance with the 
purchase method. The fair value of the acquired assets and 
liabilities is determined by the date on which the dominant 
 influence is obtained over the acquired company. The purchase 
price for the acquisition consists of the fair value of the trans-
ferred assets, liabilities and any shares issued by the Group. The 
fair value of conditional purchase prices is also included. The 
acquisition costs are not included in the cost of the subsidiary 
company but are expensed in the period in which they arise. The 
difference between the total of the purchase price, the value of 
the minority holding and the fair value of the previous holdings 
and the fair value of acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities is reported as goodwill. In the event of a 
negative difference, the difference is recognised directly in the 
income statement. The minority shares are recognised either as 
a proportional share of the acquired net assets or at fair value, 
which is assessed on an acquisition by acquisition basis. Supple-
mentary purchase prices are reported at estimated fair value 
with subsequent changes recognised in the income statement.
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Phased acquisition is valued at fair value at the date on which the 
dominant influence is achieved. Revaluation effects on previously 
owned shares before the control is achieved are recognised in 
the income statement. Increases or decreases in ownership 
shares of subsidiaries that remain under control are reported as 
changes in equity.

Investments in associated companies
Holdings in associated companies are reported in accordance 
with the equity method. An associated company is a unit in 
which the Group has a significant, but not a controlling influence, 
which is usually achieved by a shareholding of between 20-50%. 
Application of the equity method means that investments in 
associated companies are reported in the statement of financial 
position at cost with additions for changes of the Group’s share 
of the associated company’s net assets and net of any impair-
ment losses and dividends. The Income Statement reflects the 
Group’s share of the associated company’s profit after tax. 
Transactions that are reported in the associated company’s 
comprehensive income are reported in the Group’s other total 
comprehensive income. 

If the Group’s share of reported losses in the associated 
company exceeds the reported value of the shares in the Group 
the value of the shares is reduced to zero. Continued losses are 
not recognised unless the Group has given guarantees to cover 
losses arising in the associated company.

A positive difference between the acquisition value of the 
acquired shares and the Group’s share of the fair values of iden-
tifiable assets and liabilities acquired in the associated company 
constitutes goodwill that is included in the reported value of the 
associated company. If a negative difference arises, it is 
reported as revenue in the period in which the acquisition took 
place. 

Impairment of reported participations in associated companies 
is considered if there is any indication of a decline in value. In 
transactions between Group companies and associated compa-
nies, that part of the unrealised gains is eliminated that corre-
sponds to the Group’s share of the associated company. Unreal-
ised losses are eliminated in the same way unless this is an indi-
cation of a need for impairment.

Revenues
The Group’s revenues mainly comprise the sale of wind farms, 
electricity, operational services, biogas and energy systems.

Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains control over 
the sold product or service, a policy replacing the previous policy 
whereby revenue was recognised when risks and benefits were 
transferred to the purchaser. The basic policy in IFRS 15 is for a 
company to recognise a revenue in the manner that best reflects 
the transfer of the promised product or service to the customer. 
This recognition takes place with the help of a five-step model:

Step 1:   identify the contract with the customer
Step 2:   identify the various performance commitments in the 

contract
Step 3:  establish the transaction price
Step 4:  distribute the transaction price over the performance 

commitments
Step 5:  recognise a revenue when a performance commitment 

is fulfilled

Revenue from contracts with customers
The most common contract type applied by OX2 involves transfer 
of project rights and a concluded construction contract, but 
sales agreements may also occur where the customer takes 
over a commissioned wind power farm when it is completed. 
According to IFRS, revenue is to be recognised through fulfilment 
of the company’s performance commitment either over time or 
at a time.

Revenue from transfer of project rights and a concluded construction 
contract
This regards revenue from sales agreements where the client 
takes over the project rights and concludes a construction 
contract with Peas subsidiary OX2. Since these agreements entail 
that the client has taken over project rights and that OX2 subse-
quently carries out work that creates or improves an asset that 
the client controls, this means that the revenue is recognized 
partly on the sale of project rights and partly over time in accord-
ance with the principle of percentage of completion. 

On application of the percentage of completion method, the 
revenue is matched to the costs on the basis of the work carried 
out up to the balance sheet date. Revenues and costs are attrib-
uted to the accounting period during which the work is 
performed.

To determine what result has been developed at a given time, 
information is required on the following:

-  Revenue must be of such a nature that Peas can absorb it in 
the form of actual invoices or payments

- Costs must be attributable to the recognised revenue
- Monitoring of level of completion
-  The percentage of completion method will include an uncer-

tainty component. Unforeseen incidents may occur that could 
affect the final result so that it becomes either higher or lower 
than expected. Construction projects will be followed up on an 
ongoing basis and reservations for any losses will be made as 
soon as these are known.

Revenue from the sale of commissioned wind farms
In cases where the customer does not have control over the 
asset until it is completed, the revenue will be recognised at a 
time that takes place on completion and handover to the 
customer. 
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Revenues in other Group companies
Revenue from the sale of electricity, biogas, district heating and 
operational services is recognised in the period in which the 
delivery has been made and regarding services in the period in 
which the service was provided. Revenue concerning sales of 
energy systems is recognised in accordance with the percentage 
of completion method.

State funding
Government grants are reported in the Balance Sheet as prepaid 
income when there is reasonable assurance that the funding will 
be received and that the Group will meet the conditions attached 
to the funding. Contributions are capitalised systematically in the 
Income Statement in the same way, and over the same periods, 
as the costs for which the funding is intended to compensate. 
Government grants related to assets are reported in the Balance 
Sheet as prepaid income and are recognised as other operating 
income over the useful life of the asset.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using 
the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the 
rate at which the net present value of all future inward and 
outward payments during the interest period is equal to the 
carrying amount of the receivable.

Group lease agreements
According to IFRS 16, the lessee must recognise assets and liabil-
ities attributable to all leases, with the exception of agreements 
shorter than twelve months and/or relating to small amounts. 
According to IFRS 16, assets that are held under lease agree-
ments are reported as fixed assets in the consolidated Balance 
Sheet at fair value at the inception of the lease or at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, if this is lower. The corre-
sponding liability to the lessor is recognised in the Balance Sheet 
as a financial lease liability. Lease payments should be appor-
tioned between the interest rate and the amortisation of the 
debt. The interest rate is distributed over the term of the lease so 
that each accounting period is charged with an amount corre-
sponding to a fixed interest rate on the liability for each period. 
The interest expense is recognised directly in the Income State-
ment.

An asset held under a lease agreement is depreciated over the 
estimated useful life of the asset, as above, or over the leasing 
period if this is shorter. 

Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the func-
tional currency at the exchange rate that is in force on the day of 
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at 
the exchange rate in force on the balance sheet date. Exchange 

rate differences arising from translation are reported in the 
Income Statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
reported at their historical acquisition values are translated at 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities that are recognised at fair value are 
converted to the functional currency at the rate in effect at the 
time of the fair value valuation. 

Exchange rate differences are recognised in the Income State-
ment in the period in which they arise, with the exception of 
transactions forming hedges that satisfy the conditions for 
hedge accounting of cash flow or of net investments, when gains 
and losses are recognised in equity.

Financial statements for foreign operations 
Items included in the financial statements of the various entities 
of the Group are recognised in the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the unit operates primarily 
(functional currency). In the consolidated financial statements, 
all amounts are translated into Swedish kronor (SEK), which is the 
parent company’s functional and presentation currency. 

Assets and liabilities in foreign operations, including goodwill and 
other Group surplus and deficit values, are translated from the 
functional currency to the reporting currency of the Group, 
Swedish kronor, using the exchange rate on the balance sheet 
date. Income and expenses in foreign operations are translated 
into SEK at an average exchange rate comprising an approxima-
tion of the exchange rates in effect at the respective transaction 
dates. Translation differences arising from currency translation 
of foreign operations are reported in the comprehensive income 
result and accumulated in a separate component of equity, here-
inafter referred to as the translation reserve. In the event of 
disposal of a foreign operation, the accumulated translation 
difference attributable to the divested foreign operation is 
reclassified from equity to the profit for the year.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or 
sale, are included in the acquisition value of the asset until the 
time when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. Loan 
arrangement and other initial loan transaction expenses are 
recognised in the income statement and distributed over the 
term. Interest income from the temporary placement of 
borrowed funds for the above asset is deducted from the 
borrowing costs that may be included in the acquisition cost of 
the asset. Other borrowing costs are charged to earnings for the 
period to which they relate.
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Remuneration to employees
Remuneration to employees in the form of wages, paid leave, sick 
leave, etc., as well as pensions, is reported as earnings. With 
regard to pensions and other post-employment benefits, these 
are classified as defined contribution plans or defined benefit 
pension plans. The Group only has defined contribution pension 
plans.

Defined contribution plans
For defined contribution plans, the company pays fixed contribu-
tions to a separate independent legal entity and has no obligation 
to pay further contributions. Costs are charged against consoli-
dated earnings as the benefits are earned, which normally 
 coincides with the time at which the premiums are paid.

Taxes
The tax cost is the total of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax
Current tax is calculated on the taxable profit in the period. 
 Taxable profit differs from the reported results in the Income 
Statement when it has been adjusted for non-taxable income 
and non-deductible expenses and for income and costs that are 
taxable or deductible in other periods. The Group’s current tax 
liability is calculated according to the rates that have been 
adopted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is accounted for on the difference between the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial state-
ments and the tax value used in the calculation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax is reported in accordance with the Balance Sheet 
method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in principle for all 
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are 
recognised in principle for all deductible temporary differences 
to the extent that it is probable that the amounts can be utilised 
for future taxable surpluses. Deferred tax liabilities and receiva-
bles are not recognised if the temporary difference is attributa-
ble to goodwill or if it occurs as a consequence of a transaction 
that constitutes the initial recognition of an asset or liability 
(which is not a business acquisition) and that, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

The deferred tax liability is recognised for taxable temporary 
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and associ-
ated companies, except in the cases where the Group is able to 
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 
it is probable that such a reversal will not occur in the foresee-
able future. The deferred tax liabilities that are attributable to the 
deductible temporary differences in respect of such investments 
and interests is only recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that the amounts can be utilised against future taxable surpluses 
and it is probable that such a use will take place in the foresee-
able future. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is tested at each 
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available for use in 
whole or in part against the deferred tax asset. Deferred tax is 
calculated in accordance with the tax rates that are expected to 
apply to the period when the asset is recovered or the liability is 
settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at balance sheet date.

Current and deferred taxes are offset when they relate to income 
tax that is levied by the same authority and the Group intends to 
regulate the tax with a net amount.

Current and deferred tax for the period
Current and deferred tax is reported as a cost or revenue in the 
Income Statement, except when the tax is attributable to trans-
actions recognised directly in equity. In such cases, tax is also 
recognised directly in equity. 

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets and intangible assets with finite useful life 
are reported at acquisition value with deductions for accu-
mulated depreciation and impairment. The cost includes the 
purchase price and costs directly attributable to bringing the 
asset to the location and in the condition for use in accordance 
with the purpose of the acquisition. Borrowing costs are included 
in the acquisition value when the criteria for this are met. Tang-
ible fixed assets comprising parts with different useful lives are 
regarded as being separate components of tangible fixed assets. 

Subsequent expenditure is added to the acquisition value only if 
it is probable that the future financial benefits associated with 
the asset will flow to the company and the cost can be calcu-
lated in a reliable way. All other subsequent expenditure should 
be recognised as an expense in the period in which it arises. A 
subsequent expenditure is added to the acquisition value if the 
cost relates to the replacement of identified components or 
parts thereof. Any residual reported values for replaced compo-
nents are scrapped and expensed in the context of the replace-
ment. Expenditure for repairs and maintenance is expensed on 
an ongoing basis.

Depreciation is based on the acquisition value of the assets with 
a deduction for estimated residual value at the end of its useful 
life and is reported on a straight line basis over the estimated 
useful life of the respective essential component. Useful lives and 
residual values are subject to annual review.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Equipment  4-7 years 
Intangible assets  5-10 years

Gains or losses that occur during scrapping or disposal of mate-
rial fixed assets make up the intermediate difference between 
what has been received for the asset and its carrying value and 
is reported in operating profit.
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Intangible assets
The Group’s licensing rights relating to the operation and devel-
opment of biogas facilities are recognised as an intangible asset. 
The intangible asset is initially recognised at acquisition value, 
which is the present value of future payments that the Group will 
be paying for this right. Depreciation is performed on a basis of a 
useful life of 10 years.

Impairment
At each balance sheet date, the Group analyses the reported 
values of tangible and intangible assets to determine whether 
there is any indication that these assets have decreased in value. 
If there are any indications in this respect, the recovery value of 
the asset is calculated in order to determine the size of any 
impairment. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Group calculates the recover-
able amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives 
are impairment tested each year as well as intangible assets that 
are not yet available for use.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value minus the 
acquisition cost and beneficial value. When calculating the 
 beneficial value the estimated future cash flow is discounted to 
current value at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash generating unit) 
is set at a lower value than the reported value, the reported value 
of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to the 
recovery value. An impairment is recognised directly in the 
Income Statement. If an impairment is then subsequently 
reversed, the carrying amount of the asset (the cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revalued asset recovery value, but the 
increased carrying amount may not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been set if no impairment of the asset (the 
cash-generating unit) had taken place in previous years. A rever-
sal of an impairment is recognised directly in the Income State-
ment. Impairment of goodwill is not reversed.

Financial instruments
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the 
Balance Sheet when the company becomes a party to the 
instrument’s contractual terms. A financial asset is removed 
from the Balance Sheet when the contractual rights have been 
realised, mature or when the company loses control over it. A 
financial liability is removed from the Balance Sheet when the 
obligation in the contract is fulfilled or it becomes otherwise 
extinct.

At each Balance Sheet date the company assesses whether 
there are objective indications that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets, which are not valued at fair value with changes 

in value recognised in profit or loss, require impairment due to 
past events. Financial instruments are reported at accrued 
acquisition value or at fair value, depending on their initial assign-
ment under IFRS 9. 

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are 
determined according to the following: The fair value of financial 
assets and liabilities with standard terms and conditions which 
are traded in an active market is determined in reference to the 
Quoted market price.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined in 
accordance with generally accepted valuation models, for exam-
ple models based on discounted cash flow analyses. Observable 
market data is used as far as possible in the valuation methods 
applied. The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities is 
considered to be a good approximation of their fair value, when 
the term is short, unless otherwise indicated in the following 
Notes to the accounts.

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING
All derivatives are recognised at fair value and recognised as 
either assets or liabilities in the Balance Sheet, depending on 
whether the fair value is positive or negative at the balance sheet 
date. Reporting of the changes in value is dependent on whether 
the derivative is identified as a hedging instrument or not.

If a derivative is identified as a hedging instrument in a cash flow 
hedge, the effective portion of the changes in the derivative’s fair 
value is reported in other comprehensive income and is accu-
mulated in the hedge reserve in equity. The ineffective portion of 
a cash flow hedge is recognised directly in the consolidated 
results. Amounts attributed to equity are reversed in the consoli-
dated results during the periods when the hedged item affects 
the consolidated result.

VALUATION AT FAIR VALUE
Information must be given about the method for determination 
of fair value in accordance with a three-level valuation hierarchy. 
The levels should reflect the extent to which the fair value is 
based on observable market data and own assumptions. The 
following describes the various levels for the determination of fair 
value.

Level 1
Financial instruments for which fair value is determined on the 
basis of observable (unadjusted) Quoted market prices in an 
active market for identical assets and liabilities. A market is 
considered active if the Quoted prices from a stock exchange, 
broker, industrial group, pricing service or supervisory authority 
are easily and regularly accessible and these prices represent 
actual, regularly occurring arm’s-length market transactions.
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Level 2
Financial instruments for which fair value is determined on the 
basis of valuation models that are based on other observable 
data for the asset or liability other than the Quoted prices 
included in level 1, either directly (i.e. price quotations) or 
 indirectly (i.e. derived from quotations). Examples of observable 
data within level 2 are data that can be used as a basis for the 
price assessment, for example market interest rates and yield 
curves. 

Level 3
Financial instruments for which fair value is determined on the 
basis of valuation models where substantial input is based on 
non-observable data.

DETERMINING FAIR VALUE

Currency forward contracts
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined from 
the current forward rates for the remaining term at the balance 
sheet date. All forward exchange contracts are assigned at level 
2 in the fair value hierarchy above. 

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and recognised as net 
amounts in the Balance Sheet when there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset and when the intention is to regulate the items with 
a net amount or at the same time to realise the asset and settle 
the liability. No offsets have been made of the financial assets 
and liabilities in the Group, nor is there any legal right to offset. 

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Classification and subsequent valuation 
On its first recognition, a financial asset is classified as being 
valued at: accrued acquisition value, fair value via other compre-
hensive income or fair value through the Income Statement. 
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are then 
valued at accrued acquisition value:
•  the financial asset is held within a business model whose 

objective is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash 
flows: and

•  the agreed terms and conditions of the financial asset give 
rise, at certain times, to cash flows that are only payments of 
principal and interest on the amount of capital outstanding

Financial assets will not be reclassified after the first time they 
are recognised unless the Group changes its business model for 
the management of financial assets. 

All financial assets that are not classified as measured at 
accrued acquisition value or fair value via other comprehensive 
income are valued at fair value through the Income Statement. 

Financial assets valued at fair value through the Income Statement 
The subsequent valuation of these assets is at fair value. Net 
gains and losses are reported in the Income Statement. See note 
26 for derivatives identified as hedging instruments.

Financial assets valued at accrued acquisition cost 
The subsequent valuation of these assets takes place at accrued 
acquisition cost using the effective interest method. The accrued 
acquisition value is reduced by impairment. Interest income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are reported 
in the Income Statement. Profits or losses arising from removal 
are reported in the Income Statement. 

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances and 
other short-term investments that can be easily converted into 
cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. In 
order to be classified as cash and cash equivalents, maturity 
may not exceed three months from the date of acquisition. Cash, 
cash equivalents and bank balances are categorized as "assets 
at acquisition value". Because funds in banks are available on 
demand, the accrued acquisition value is equal to the nominal 
value. Cash and cash equivalents are covered by the general 
model for expected credit provisions in IFRS 9. The model is 
based on the counterparties’ ratings. Due to short terms and 
stable counterparties, the reserve is completely immaterial.

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are categorised as “Assets at accrued 
acquisition value”, which means valuation at accrued acquisition 
value. The expected maturity of accounts receivables is short, 
which is why they are reported at nominal amounts without 
discounting. Deductions are made for expected credit losses. 
Impairment of accounts receivable is reported as operating 
expenses.

Contract assets
Contract assets are contractual payment flows from customers 
and are categorized as "Assets at accrued acquisition value". 
These receivables have a maturity exceeding the maturity of 
accounts receivable and amount to a maximum of 12 months. 
Deductions are made for expected credit losses.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Classification, subsequent valuation and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as valued at acquisition value or 
fair value via the Income Statement. A financial liability is classi-
fied at fair value through the Income Statement if it is classified 
as a holding for commercial purposes, as a derivative, or has 
been identified as such at the time of initial recognition. Financial 
liabilities measured at fair value through the Income Statement 
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are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including 
interest costs, are reported in the Income Statement. The 
subsequent valuation of financial liabilities takes place at 
accrued acquisition cost using the effective interest method. 
Interest expenses and foreign exchange gains and losses are 
reported in the Income Statement. See note 27 for financial 
liabilities identified as hedging instruments.

Accounts payable
Accounts payable are categorised as “Financial liabilities”, which 
means valuation at accrued acquisition value. The expected 
maturity of accounts payable is short, which is why they are 
reported at nominal amounts without discounting.

Liabilities to credit institutions and other loan liabilities
Interest-bearing bank loans, bank overdrafts and other loans are 
categorised as "Financial liabilities" and are measured at amor-
tised cost in accordance with the effective interest rate method. 
Any differences between the loan amount received (net after 
transaction costs) and the payment or repayment of loans over 
the duration of the loans are reported in accordance with the 
consolidated accounting policy for borrowing costs (see above). 

Provisions
Provisions are reported when the Group has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obliga-
tion and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The 
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertain-
ties associated with the obligation. When a provision is calcu-
lated by estimating the expenditure expected to be required to 
settle the obligation, the carrying amount must be equal to the 
present value of these payments. Where some or all of the 
expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be paid 
by a third party, the payment must be reported separately as an 
asset on the Balance Sheet when it is virtually certain that reim-
bursement will be received if the company settles the obligation 
and the amount can be calculated in a reliable way.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are possible commitments arising from past 
events, the existence of which is confirmed only by the occur-
rence or absence of one or more future events, which are not 
entirely within the Group’s control. Liabilities arising from past 
events are also recognized as contingent liabilities, but are not 
recognized as liabilities because it is not likely that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the commitment. Perfor-
mance guarantees and payment guarantees from insurers and 
banks are included in the amount up to nominal value until the 
project is handed over. In some cases, the value of a part 
completed is deducted from the obligation under the respective 
agreement.

Accounting policies for the parent company
The parent company Peas Industries AB prepares its annual 
accounts in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act 
(1995:1554) and the Swedish Council for Financial Reporting’s 
recommendation RFR 2 “Accounting for legal entities”. The differ-
ences between the parent company’s and Group’s accounting 
principles are described below:

Shares in subsidiaries
Shares in subsidiaries are accounted for in accordance with the 
acquisition value method. Acquisition-related costs to subsidi-
aries that are expensed in the consolidated financial statements 
are included as part of the acquisition value of shares in subsidi-
aries. The carrying amount of shares in subsidiaries is tested for 
impairment when there is an indication of need for impairment. 

Group contributions and shareholder contributions
Shareholder contributions are recognised directly in the equity of 
the recipient and reported against shares and participations 
from the provider, in so far as impairment is not required. Group 
contributions between the parent company and subsidiaries are 
reported as year-end dispositions.

Leasing
In the parent company, all leasing agreements are reported in 
accordance with the regulations for operational leasing.
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Note 3 Estimates and assessments in 
the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are based on various 
 estimates and assessments made by management that affect 
the application of the accounting policies and the carrying 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and costs. Assessments 
that are made may deviate from future results. 

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis. 
The effects of changes in estimates are reported in the period in 
which the change is made if the change affects that period only, 
or in the period of the change and future periods, if the change 
affects both the current period and future periods.

Recognition of sale of shares in subsidiaries
Peas Industries has sold 30% of its shares in OX2 during the year. 
To do this, the company bought 70% of the shares in Xygen 
Holdco AB, which at that time was a new company, and in 
connection with this sold 100% of its shares in OX2 to Xygen Bidco 
AB, a company that is controlled – via a number of elements – by 
Xygen Holdco AB, which indirectly owns 100% of votes and capital 
in the company. 

Peas’ sale of 100% of the OX2 Group and purchase of 70% of Xygen 
Holdco AB must be regarded as single transaction as entering 
into an agreement and execution of the purchase and sale will 
take place more or less simultaneously. Moreover, in financial 
terms this transaction meant that Peas retained a controlling 
influence in the OX2 group.

With this assessment in mind, the sale of shares has been 
processed within the Peas Group as one transaction between 
owners and recognised in equity. Hence the transaction 
expenses are also recognised in equity. In the parent company, 
this is recognised as a sale of shares and recognised in the Profit 
from participations in Group companies row. The transaction 
expenses relating to this sale are also included in this profit.

Impairment of fixed assets
Determination of whether the fixed asset should be impaired or 
not requires an assessment of the recoverable value. The recov-
erable amount is the higher of the asset’s beneficial value or fair 
value less sales costs. The calculation of the beneficial value 
requires estimates of future cash flows and the discount rate. 
Naturally enough, such assessments always entail a certain 
degree of uncertainty.

Assessment of recognition of licences
Biond holds a licence for the right to operate and develop a 
biogas plant. The Group pays monthly fees and licence charges 
to the counterparty. The fees and charges are considered to 
constitute a single agreement for accounting purposes. The 
agreement has been deemed to meet the definition of an asset, 
which is why the Group recognises this right as an intangible 
asset. The intangible asset is valued at acquisition value with a 
deduction for depreciation and any impairment losses. The 
acquisition value is made up of the current value of future 
payments that the Group will be paying for this right. The corre-
sponding amounts are initially recognised as a liability which then 
decreases in pace with the repayment of the principal. 

The assessment of the degree of completion for the percentage of 
completion method
OX2 and Enstar apply the percentage of completion method in 
accounting for the projects that are sold as construction 
contracts. The percentage of completion method means that the 
Group must make estimates in respect of the completion of the 
transaction at the balance sheet date. 

Reporting cash flows at the acquisition and sale of companies
The cash flow effects arising from the sale and acquisition of 
companies related to projects in the form of a company are 
recognised as changes in operating capital in the consolidated 
cash flow analysis. 

Note 4 Financial risk management and 
financial instruments 
Financial policy
Through its operations, Peas is exposed to various financial risks 
in the form of market risks, which include currency and interest 
rate risks, credit and financial risks. The Group’s overall risk 
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of the finan-
cial markets and strives to minimise potentially adverse effects 
on the Group’s financial results. Risk management is performed 
in accordance with the financial policy adopted by the Board. 
The Board has established written policies for both the overall 
risk management and for specific areas such as currency risk, 
interest risk, counterparty risk and the investment of surplus 
liquidity. The financial policy is updated annually and as required.

MARKET RISKS

Introduction
The business models for the Peas Group differ in the various 
subsidiaries, but principally are intended to build meaningful, 
profitable companies that unite human needs with caring for our 
planet. The Peas Group’s ultimate goal is to create a sustainable 
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society on the basis of all dimensions. Most market risks are indi-
rect, i.e. the Peas Group’s clients may manage risks and the Peas 
Group suffers indirectly via reduced demand and/or lower sales 
prices.

Currency risks
Within the framework of Peas Industries’ operations there is 
exposure to foreign currencies, which entails risks. When evalu-
ating the currency risk, total inflows and outflows in foreign 
currency are taken into account. The largest exposure arises in 
connection with the sale of wind power projects in EUR within 
Peas subsidiary OX2. Wind turbines are primarily ordered from 
European suppliers in EUR, which means a natural hedge against 
sales in EUR. The establishment of OX2 in Poland also involves a 
certain exposure in PLN. Foreign exchange risk also arises for 
contracted flows in DKK within Biond. Currency risk is handled in 
a way which meets requirements from the policy in respect of 
risk minimisation, adapted to the conditions of the particular 
company. When hedging foreign exchange risk, the total currency 
exposure of each company is taken into account. The Transac-
tion exposure resulting from purchases and sales can be hedged 
for up to 36 months. Most of the hedging will mature in 2021.

Given the 2020 contracted flows at year-end date and no hedge, 
a change in exchange rate of SEK 0.10 would influence the result 
with SEK +/- -12.0 million (+/- 7.7). In the case of a change to the 
exchange rate of SEK 0.10 at the end of the year, the impact on 
equity is expected to amount to approximately SEK -6.5 million 
(-10.0) given the currency hedging that has been recognised via 
equity. 

Interest rate risk
The Group has a bank loan of SEK 21.6 million with a variable 
interest rate. SEK 16.6 million of this loan is interest rate hedged 
via a derivative (interest rate swap for variable to fixed interest). 
For the unhedged part, an increase of one percentage point in 
the interest rate would involve an additional cost of SEK 0.1 thou-
sand (0.1). Besides this, there are outstanding bank loans 
amounting to SEK 1,020 million, with an average variable interest 
rate of 2.75%. A one percentage point increase in the interest rate 
would involve an additional cost of SEK 2.5 million for 2020.

The Group is affected by the interest component in the currency 
derivatives forward rate included in the hedges for currency 
risks: see also the section entitled Currency risks. A change of 
+/- 0.01 in the swap component (100 bps) would affect the 
market value of the forward exchange contracts by approx. 
SEK +/- 0.8 (1.2) million, based on current forward exchange 
contracts during 2020.

Investments
The Group’s cash flow generated from operating activities will be 
used for the development of new projects and the financing of 
ongoing activities. Surplus liquidity will be invested with counter-
parties that have high credit ratings and thus low credit risk. 
Given the 2020 figures, a reduction of revenue interest to 0 per 
cent would lead to a reduction of interest income of approx. SEK 
0.9 million (0.7). Peas Industries has not paid negative interest on 
funds in its other bank accounts. 

Price risk for electricity
The market price for electricity varies over time. The future price 
for electricity is the single most important parameter in the 
customers’ investment calculations for wind power projects or 
for energy efficiency projects. Thus, Peas’ activities in both the 
short and the long term are affected by how the futures market 
for electricity develops. The company follows the market, the 
economy and the price of other types of energy. 

Credit risk
Credit risk or counterparty risk refers to the risk of loss if the 
counterparty fails to fulfil its obligations. The commercial credit 
risk includes customers’ ability to pay and is managed via moni-
toring and follow-up of customers’ financial reports. The Group’s 
customers are primarily major corporations in the financial 
sector, which usually have regulated operations. The Group’s 
total credit risk is distributed over a small number of customers 
who represent a relatively large proportion of the Group’s 
accounts receivable. The financial credit risk is covered by the 
general model for expected credit provisions in IFRS 9. The 
model is based on the counterparties’ ratings. Due to short terms 
and stable counterparties, the reserve is completely immaterial.

The Group applies a forward-looking model for commercial credit 
risk. The simplified model is based on history and an adjustment 
for current forward-looking factors. Clients are aggregated into 
two groups based on the nature of the risk and maturity of the 
receivables. Expected credit losses are insignificant and we see 
no significant changes in current or forward-looking factors.

Liquidity and financing risk
Liquidity risk is understood to be the risk that the Group can be 
adversely affected by the lack of management and control of 
cash and cash equivalents and cash flows. Financing risk is the 
risk that the Group is not able to mobilise sufficient funds to meet 
its commitments. Peas is constantly working with cash flow fore-
casts and with respect to wind turbines sold to customers as 
operational, the company aims to match payment plans from 
suppliers against payments from customers in the respective 
projects.
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Note 4 Financial risk management and financial instruments, cont.

Maturity distribution of the contractual payment obligations related to the Group’s and parent company’s financial assets and 
 liabilities is shown in the tables below.

GROUP
Amounts in SEK thousand 2020 2019

Assets
0-3 

months
3-12 

months 1-5 years Total
0-3 

months
3-12 

months 1-5 years Total

Accounts receivable 143,560 7,418 - 150,978 89,953 140 – 90,093

Other current receivables 27,330 - - 27,330 50,263 – – 50,263

Derivative instruments - 36,831 - 36,831 – 3,931 – 3,931

Cash and cash equivalents 2,867,778 - - 2,876,778  1,147,176 – – 1,147,176

Total 3,047,668  44,249 - 3,091,917 1,287,532 4,071 – 1,291,463

Liabilities
0-3 

months
3-12 

months 1-5 years Total
0-3 

months
3-12 

months 1-5 years Total

Other long-term liabilities - - 1,129,371 1,129,371 – – 131,753 131,753

Derivative instruments - 341 - 341 – – – –

Accounts payable 155,834 - - 155,834 283,386 – – 283,386

Other current liabilities - 95,210 - 95,210 – 874,505 – 874,505

Total 155,834 95,551 1,129,371 1,380,756 283,386 874,505 131,753 1,289,644

PARENT COMPANY
Amounts in SEK thousand 2020 2019

Assets
0-3 

months
3-12 

months 1-5 years Total
0-3 

months
3-12 

months 1-5 years Total

Long-term receivables at Group 
companies  515,800 515,800 21,650 21,650

Accounts receivable - - - - – – – –

Receivables from Group  
companies - 359,456 - 359,456 – 218,183 – 218,183

Other current receivables 11,423 - - 11,423 1,841 – – 1,841

Cash and cash equivalents 1,573,744 - - 1,573,744 98,060 – – 98,060

Total 1,588,167 359,456 515,800 2,460,423 99,901 218,183 21,650 339,734

Liabilities
0-3 

months
3-12 

months 1-5 years Total
0-3 

months
3-12 

months 1-5 years Total

Accounts payable 759 - - 759 4,790 – – 4,790

Liabilities to Group companies - 29,519 - 29,519 – 7,062 – 7,062

Other current liabilities - 284 - 284 – 2,278 – 2,278

Total 759 29,803 - 30,562 4,790 9,340 – 14,130
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Note 4 Financial risk management and financial instruments, cont.

CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK
External purchasers assume part of Peas’ credit risk in connection with the sale of wind farms. The proportion which the external 
purchasers assume depends on whether delivery has been made or not. External purchasers may also provide security for their 
 obligations in connection with the sale of wind farms. Furthermore, the purchasers make an advance payment in accordance with a 
payment plan. The Group and the parent company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying values of all 
financial assets and is shown in the table below.

Group Parent company
Amounts in SEK thousand 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Long-term receivables at Group companies 515,800 21,650

Accounts receivable 150,978 90,093 - –

Receivables from Group companies - – 359,456 218,183

Other receivables 27,330 50,263 11,423 1,841

Derivative instruments 36,831 3,931 - –

Cash and cash equivalents 2,876,778 1,147,176 1,573,744 98,060

Maximum exposure to credit risk 3,091,917 1,291,463 2,406,423 339,734

CATEGORISATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities, divided per evaluation category in accordance with IFRS 9, is shown in 
the table below.

Group Parent company
Amounts in SEK thousand 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Financial assets

Loans and receivables1) 515,800 21,650

Accounts receivable 150,978 90,093 - 0

Receivables from Group companies - - 359,456 218,183

Other current receivables 27,330 50,263 11,423 1,841

Derivatives2) 36,831 3,931 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 2,876,778 1,147,176 1,573,744 98,060

Total financial assets 3,091,917 1,291,463 2 4 60,423 339,734

Financial liabilities

Derivatives identified as hedging instruments

Derivatives2) 341 - - -

Other financial liabilities1)

Other long-term liabilities 1,129,371 131,753 - -

Liabilities to Group companies - - 29,519 7,062

Accounts payable 155,834 283,386 759 4,790

Other current liabilities 95,210 874,505 284 2,278

Total financial liabilities 1,380,756 1,289,644 30,562 14,130

1)  Valued at accrued acquisition value.
2)  Belongs to category 2.
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Note 5 Revenue
The Peas group’s recognised revenue comes from the sale of wind farms, electricity, biogas and energy systems and the sale of 
administration services linked with wind farms.

Group Parent company
Revenue per category 2020 2019 2020 2019

Sale of wind farms 5,131,369 4,882,966 –

Electricity sales 24,117 39,924 –

Sales of biogas and district heating 67,415 62,640 –

Sale of energy systems 144,131 123,861 –

Sales of management services 38,869 29,102 2,208 2,415

Sales of other services 29,796 -252 54 -17

Funding from the Swedish Energy Agency 23,959 21,325 –

Service and management fees – 26,716 49,171

Total 5,459,656 5,159,566 28,978 51,569

Group

Revenue by country1) 2020 2019

Sweden 2,416,050 4,464,404

Finland 2,386,114 592,006

Norway 349,667 103,156

Poland 307,825 -

Total 5,459,656 5,159,566

1) The revenue by country is based on where projects are located.

Group
Time of revenue recognition 2020 2019

At a certain time 1,112,926 535,522

Over time 4,346,730 4,624,044

Total 5,459,656 5,159,566

The following table shows the total amount of the transaction price distributed over the performance 
commitments that are unfulfilled (or partly unfulfilled) at the end of the reporting period.

Group
Contract assets 2020 2019

Ongoing work in progress on behalf of others (see also Note 19) 0 92,629

Accrued income (see also Note 21) 201,224 81,548

Reported value 201,224 174,177

of which

Long-term assets - –

Current assets 199,730 174,177

Reported value 199,730 174,177
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Note 5 Revenue, cont.

The following table shows how much of the recognised revenue for the period is attributable to advance payments received that were 
included in recognised contract liabilities at the start of the year. No revenue has been recognised during the year that is attributable 
to fulfilled performance commitments in earlier periods.

Group
Contract liabilities 2020 2019

Advance payments from customers (see also Note 28) 471,719 385,219

Prepaid income (see also Note 30) 8,310 2,911

Reported value 480,029 388,130

of which

Long-term liabilities - –

Current liabilities 480,029 388,130

Reported value 480,029 388,130

No information is provided about transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance commitments since, as at 31 December 
2020, no such commitments with an expected maturity of more than one year existed

Note 6 Information about auditor fees and reimbursement
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 2020 2019 2020 2019

Deloitte AB

Audit tasks 2,745 1,989 387 127

Audit work in addition to audit tasks 1,715 575 583 10

Tax advice 2,103 1,646 177 71

Total 6,563 4,210 1,087 208

The audit fee refers to the auditor’s remuneration for the statutory audit. The work involves the examination of the annual report and 
accounts, the Board of Directors and the CEO’s management and the remuneration for advice given in the context of the audit task. 
The audit activity in addition to the audit task is mainly concerned with quality assurance services other than the statutory audit. 

Note 7 Leasing

OPERATIONAL LEASING
The parent company’s operational leasing concerns office machinery and rent for office premises. The rent for the office premises 
has been reported in full in the parent company accounts but has been re-invoiced partially to subsidiaries according to the distribu-
tion key. The annual cost of operational leasing agreements amounts to SEK 4,667 thousand (7,388) for the parent company. 

Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 2020 2019 2020 2019

Year 1 - – 1,398 8,047

Between 2 and 5 years - – 2,670 11,400

Later than 5 years - – - –

Total - – 4,068 19,447
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Note 8  Number of employees, salaries, other remuneration  
and social security expenses

2020 2019

Average number of employees
Average quantity

employees
Of whom

men
Average quantity

employees
Of whom

men

Parent company

Sweden 13.0 3.5 23.5 5.5

Total in parent company 13.0 3.5 23.5 5.5

Subsidiaries

Sweden 164.0 107.5 124.5 89

Finland 27.0 17.0 15.5 11

Lithuania 1.0 1.0 1 1

France 7.0 3.5 4.5 3

Germany 2.0 1.0 3 1.5

Poland 11.0 7.0 4 2.5

Total in subsidiaries 212.0 137.0  152.5 108

Total in Group 225.0 140.5 176 113.5

Group Parent company
31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Distribution of senior executives 
at balance sheet date

Women:

Board members 1 1 1 1

other people in the management of the Company, incl. CEO 3 2 1 1

Men:

Board members 10 9 3 5

other people in the management of the Company, incl. CEO 8 9 2 1

Total 22 21 7 8

2020 2019

Soc sec 
expenses

Soc sec 
expenses

(SEK thousand)

Salaries and 
 other 

 remuneration

(of which 
pension 

expenses)

Salaries and 
 other 

 remuneration

(of which 
pension 

expenses)

Salaries, remuneration, etc.

Parent company 11,922 6,367 15,150 13,310

(2,400) (6,833)

Subsidiaries 181,043 75,063 125,364 51,504

(23,456) (14,555)

Total for Group 192,965 81,431 140,514 64,814

(25,856) (21,388)
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Note 8 Number of employees, salaries, other remuneration and social security expenses, cont.

2020 2019

Salaries and remuneration divided between 
Board members etc. and employees

Board and
CEO (of which 

bonuses, etc.)
Other

employees

Board and
CEO (of which 

bonuses, etc.)
Other

employees

Parent company 2,867 12,283

2,647 9,275 (0)

(0)

Subsidiaries 13,576 167,467 10,934 114,430

(2,330)

Total in subsidiaries 13,576 167,467 10,934 114,430

Total in Group 16,223 176,742 13,801 126,713

(2,330) (5,521)

REMUNERATION TO SENIOR EXECUTIVES
The Chairman and other Board members are paid a fee in accordance with the resolution of the Annual General Meeting. In 2020, the 
costs of remuneration to the Board of Directors amounted to SEK 1,320 thousand (1,076). Remuneration to the parent company’s CEO 
and Deputy CEO for the year amounted to SEK 2,798 thousand (4,798). Remuneration to the CEO and other senior executives consists 
of basic salary, bonuses, other benefits and pension. Senior executives are the three individuals who, together with the CEO, form the 
Group’s management team. 

BONUS
Within the Group there is an annual bonus program, which means that an employee can receive an amount up to a maximum of one 
fixed monthly salary, provided that the company achieves its financial and operational objectives for the year in question. In addition, 
there are individually agreed bonus programs. A profit-based bonus for 2020 has been reserved for the Group amounting to a total of 
SEK 27,430 thousand (21,051), excluding social security contributions.

PENSIONS
The Group only has defined contribution pension plans. Pension cost relates to the cost that will affect earnings for the year. The 
retirement age for the CEO is 65. Pension premiums may amount to a maximum of 35% of the pensionable salary. The pensionable 
salary is the basic salary. The retirement age for other senior management is 65. Pension premiums for other senior management have 
been agreed individually. For the CEO and and Deputy CEO, however, the pension premiums for 2020 amount to 30% of the pensionable 
salary.

SEVERANCE PAY
In the event of dismissal by the company, the CEO and Deputy CEO have a period of notice of 6 months and no severance pay. For 
other senior management, the period of notice is 3 to 6 months. There are no agreements regarding severance pay for other senior 
executives.
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Note 9 Financial income
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 2020 2019 2020 2019

Interest income 968 743 - –

Internal interest income - – 15,162 418

Exchange rate gains 63,564 38,684 3 –

Total financial income 64,532 39,427 15,165 418

All interest income relates in its entirety to financial assets that are not assessed at fair value via the Income Statement.

Note 10 Financial costs
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 2020 2019 2020 2019

External interest costs -8,606 -1,464 -2 -1

Internal interest costs - – - –

Interest costs leasing debt -191 -254 - –

Exchange rate losses -97,111 -36,600 - –

Unrealised value changes -1,637 -3,888 - –

Total financial costs -107,545 -42,206 -2 -1

All interest costs relate in their entirety to financial assets that are not assessed at fair value via the Income Statement.

Note 11 Income from participations in Group companies
Parent company

(SEK thousand) 2020 2019

Dividends from Group companies 78,000 -

Capital gain sale of shares in subsidiaries 2,334,568 -

Impairment of shares in subsidiaries -5,400 -

Write-downs of other financial holdings -150 -

Total year-end appropriations 2,407,018 0

Note 12 Year-end appropriations
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 2020 2019 2020 2019

Group contributions received - – - 200,000

Group contributions provided - – -29,494 -18,593

Provision to tax allocation reserve - – 23,000 -40,000

Additional depreciation - – 648 -330

Total year-end appropriations - – -5,846 141,077
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Note 13 Taxes

REPORTED TAX EXPENSE
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current tax

Tax cost for the year -51,553 -38,771 -301 -27,725

Deferred tax -29,599 -16,407 -333 -5

Total reported tax cost -81,151 -55,178 -635 -27,730

Tax related to other comprehensive income -4,158 -2,894 - -

Tax included in other comprehensive income -85,310 -58,072 -635 -27,730

Income tax in Sweden is calculated at 21.4% on the year’s taxable profit. In Finland, the corresponding rate is 20%. A reconciliation 
between the reported results and the tax cost for the year is given below Deferred tax is calculated in accordance with the tax rates 
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at balance sheet date.

RECONCILIATION OF THE TAX COST FOR THE YEAR
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 2020 2019 2020 2019

Profit for the year before tax 343,359 349,764 2,655,056 128,757

Tax calculated in accordance with the current tax rate -73,479 -74,850 -515,029 -27,554

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses -16,679 -1,261 -1,896 -163

The tax effect of non-taxable revenues 29,703 14,120 569,443 –

Tax effect temporary difference -20,587 6,894 - –

Tax effect of Group adjustment items - -14 - –

Tax effect of branches -68 - - –

Tax attributable to prev. years -43 -67 - -13

Total reported tax cost for the year -81,151 -55,178 -635 -27,730

GROUP

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/TAX LIABILITIES

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Financial instruments -9,441 -969

Improvement works to others’ property - 333

Tax allocation fund -46,640 -55,330

Tax allocation reserve -28 -167

Temporary differences -15,828 21,207

Total -71,938 -34,926

PARENT COMPANY

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/TAX LIABILITIES

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Intangible assets - 333

Total - 333
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Note 14 Other intangible fixed assets
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Opening acquisition values 156,762 143,338 2,314 1,191

Purchases 6,237 18,069 - 1,123

Disposals for the year -304 – -183 –

Reclassifications - -4,645 - –

Closing acc. acquisition values 162,695 156,762 2,131 2,314

Opening depreciation -48,494 -41,733 -1212 -1,022

Depreciation according to plan -12,496 -11,501 -262 -190

This year’s scrappage 161 - 161 –

Reclassifications - 4,740 - -

Closing acc. acquisition values -60,829 -48,494 -1313 -1,212

Closing residual value according to plan 101,866 108,268 818 1,102

Estimated utilisation period for intangible fixed assets is 5 to 10 years. 

Note 15 Equipment
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Opening acquisition values 29,725 27,543 8,454 7,503

Purchases 8,477 4,570 844 1,244

Disposals for the year -9,659 -2,388 -7,817 -293

Closing acc. acquisition values 28,543 29,725 1,481 8,454

Opening depreciation -20,732 -21,486 -5,867 -5,520

Depreciation according to plan -2,386 -1,561 -515 -591

Disposals for the year 5,725 2,315 5235 244

Closing acc. depreciation -17,393 -20,732 -1,147 -5,867

Closing residual value according to plan 11,150 8,993 334 2,587
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Note 16 Other technical installations
Group

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Opening acquisition values 6,630 6,630

Purchases - –

Closing acc. acquisition values 6,630 6,630

Opening depreciation -957 -577

Depreciation according to plan -380 -380

Closing acc. depreciation -1,337 -957

Closing residual value according to plan 5,293 5,673

Other technical installations are attributable to Biond Production Sävsjö AB. In connection with 
the investment, a consolidated surplus value arose that is attributable to the facility. 

Note 17 Right-of-use assets
The following amounts related to lease agreements are recognised in the balance sheet

Group
(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Real estate 11,893 28,829

Vehicles 2,424 2,204

Equipment 260 605

Total 14,577 31,638

Leasing liabilities

Current 5,935 13,206

Long-term 6,670 16,634

Total 12,606 29,840

Additional usage rights during the year amounted to 2,976 (39,315).

The following amounts related to lease agreements are recognised in the income statement

Depreciation on usage rights Group
(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Real estate 11,563 9,733 

Vehicles 594 432

Equipment 140 272

Total 12,297 10,437

Interest expenses (included in financial expenses) -191 -254

Expenditure attributable to short-term leasing 0 0

Expenditure attributable to low-value leasing 0 0

Expenditure attributable to variable lease payment that were not included  
in the leasing liability 0 0

The total cash flow attributable to lease agreements in 2020 amounted to 17,234 (12,235)
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Note 18 Participations in Group companies
Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Opening acquisition value 120,943 121,043

Purchases/shareholders’ contribution 14,200 -

Sales -35,010 -100

Impairment -5,400 -

Closing acquisition value 94,733 120,943

The Group includes the following subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020:

Company name
Number of 

shares
Share of
equity, %

Carrying value
(SEK thousands), 

2020

Carrying value
(SEK thousands), 

2019

Xygen Holdco AB 17,501 100% 81,070 -

OX2 AB 10,000 0% 116,080

Utellus 1,000 100% 1 -

Biond Holding AB 910 91% 9,404 404

DTS Holding AB 455 91% 4,258 4,459

Total 94,733 120,943

Company name Corp. ID no. Registered office

Equity
inc. profit/loss  

for the year Profit

Xygen Holdco AB 559260-1909 Stockholm 2,132,386 92,491

Utellus 556667-4916 Stockholm 3,747 21

Biond Holding AB 556889-1567 Stockholm 900 -8,553

DTS Holding AB 559136-6223 Stockholm 9,684 -2,974

All subsidiaries are consolidated in the Group. The percentage of voting rights in the subsidiaries that are directly owned by the parent 
company does not differ from the percentage of ordinary shares owned. 
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Note 18 Participations in Group companies, cont.

Non-controlling interests
Total ownership of non-controlling shareholders (minority share of equity) for the period amounts to SEK 272,703 thousand (7,955).

Company Main area of activity Minority interest
Profit for the year 

allocated to minority

Minority’s 
accumulated holdings 

at the end of the period

Xygen Holdco AB Sale of wind power and solar 
energy systems

30% 27,643 235,389

Enstar AB Sale of energy systems 48% 1,997 8,685

Biond Production 
Sävsjö AB

Biogas production 9.5% 3 970

Biond Holding AB Holding company 9.0% -3 851

DTS Holding AB Holding company 9.0% 168 1,072

Company name Corp. ID no. Registered office
Equity incl. net profit  

for the year Profit

Enstar AB 556613-8367 Stockholm 20,370 4,161

Xygen Holdco AB 559260-1909 Stockholm 2,132,386 92,491

Biond Production 
Sävsjö AB

556695-9705 Sävsjö 4,534 32

Biond Holding AB 556889-1567 Stockholm 10,426 -33

DTS Holding AB 559136-6223 Stockholm 18,277 1,867

Long-term receivables at Group companies Parent company
(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Opening balance 21,650 23,650

Cleared receivables, Group companies - -2,000

Additional receivables, Group companies 494,150 -

Closing balance 515,800 21,650
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Note 19 Work in progress on behalf of others
Group

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

OX2’s projects in Sweden 17,047 95,817

OX2’s projects in Finland 152,267 806,109

OX2’s projects in Poland 146,415 52,593

OX2’s projects in Germany - 2,168

Biond’s projects 2,582 2,824

Closing reported value 318,311 959,511

Work in progress refers to costs incurred for each project distributed by company and country. 

Note 20 Accounts receivable
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Accounts receivable, gross 150,978 90,093 - –

Provision for expected credit losses - – - –

Total accounts receivable, net of the provision for expected 
credit losses 150,978 90,093 - –

Management assesses that the reported value for accounts receivable, net of the provision for expected credit losses, conforms with 
the fair value. 

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Group
Age analysis of accounts receivables Gross

Provision for 
expected 

credit losses Gross

Provision for 
expected 

credit losses

Not due 143,560 - 84,007 –

Due 30 days 4,498 - 4,553 –

Due 31 - 60 days 55 - 1,354 –

Due 61 - 90 days 30 - 39 –

Due > 90 days 2,835 - 140 –

Total 150,978 - 90,093 –

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Parent company
Age analysis of accounts receivables Gross

Provision for 
expected 

credit losses Gross

Provision for 
expected 

credit losses 

Not due - - – –

Due 30 days - - – –

Total - - – –
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Note 21 Prepaid expenses and accrued income
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Other prepaid costs 10,105 4,019 494 1,248

Prepaid rent 699 2,442 352 2,016

Pre-paid construction costs related to OX2 projects 17,469 280,570 - –

Accrued income electricity sold 7,910 10,095 - –

Accrued project revenue 179,801 60,836 - –

Other accrued revenue 13,513 10,617 - –

Total 229,497 368,579 846 3,264

Note 22 Share capital development

Event
Change, 

share capital, SEK
Total share 

capital, SEK
No. of series A 

shares/change
No. of series B 

shares/change Quotient value

The company was registered 100,000 100,000 1,000 – 100

New share issue 1,905 101,905 100,905 – 1

Conversion of series A shares to series B – 101,905 -49,977 49,977 1

101,905 51,928 49,977 1.00

Share capital: 101,905 shares at a quotient value of SEK 1 divided into 51,928 series A shares, 49,977 Series B shares and no preferential 
shares. One series A share entitles the holder to ten votes and series B shares entitle the holder to one vote each. A decision was 
made at the Annual General Meeting that took place on 18 December 2020 to reduce share capital by SEK 13,610 and make a new issue 
of shares amounting to a corresponding amount. Registration with the Swedish Company Registration Office in respect of both 
 decisions took place in January 2021.

Note 23 Other contributed capital
In the context of restructuring in 2011, Peas Industries AB received a capital contribution of SEK 72,836,000. 

Note 24 Translation reserve and hedging reserve
TRANSLATION RESERVE
The translation reserve includes exchange rate differences arising from the translation of the financial statements from the subsi-
diaries and branches that have prepared their financial statements in euros, Norwegian kroner and Polish zloty. 

HEDGING RESERVE
The hedging reserve includes the effective portion of the accumulated net change in the fair value of a cash flow instrument attribut-
able to hedging transactions that have not yet occurred.
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Note 25 Untaxed reserves
Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Tax allocation reserve 2017 - 7,900

Tax allocation reserve 2018 25,900 41,000

Tax allocation reserve 2019 53,000 53,000

Tax allocation reserve 2020 40,000 40,000

Excess depreciation - 648

Total 118,900 142,548

Note 26 Long-term liabilities
Group

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Due for payment 2 to 5 years 
after Balance Sheet date:

Financing of new pre-treatment plant 18,900 16,600

Leasing liabilities 6,670 16,634

Bank loan* 1,020,000 –

Licensing liabilities 42,322 52,039

Due for payment later than 5 years after 
balance sheet date:

Financing of new pre-treatment plant 5,000

Licensing liabilities 41,479 41,480

Total 1,129,371 131,753

*  In September 2021, Peas subsidiary Xygen Bidco AB signed a financing agreement with Danske 
Bank for a total of SEK 1,200 million over a term of 3 years. Of the total available limit of SEK 1,200 
million, SEK 1,000 million has been used for the completed restructuring operation within the 
Group. The remaining SEK 200 million is a facility available for OX2’s activities and can be used to 
acquire project rights and for further expansion, for instance. SEK 20 million has been utilised as 
at the balance sheet date. The fair value of the borrowing corresponds to its carrying amount as 
the discount effect is not significant. There are special undertakings known as covenants. The 
lender may recall the loan unless these obligations are met. All obligations have been met during 
the 2020 financial year.
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Note 27 Derivative instruments
Currency forward contracts Group

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Change in value of currency hedg-
ing as at 31/12/2020 36,831 3,931

Total 36,831 3,931

Outstanding forward exchange 
contracts 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Expiration year 2020 EUR EUR DKK DKK

Amount (EUR) - 70,790 - 100

Average contract rate - 10,491 - 1,436

Exchange rate at year-end date - 10,434 0 1,397

Expiration year 2021 EUR EUR DKK DKK PLN PLN

Amount (EUR) 75,625 49,625 630 530 68,900 -

Average contract rate 10,563 10,552 1,441 1,442 2,368 -

Exchange rate at year-end date 10,038 10,434 1,349 1,397 2,217 -

Expiration year 2022 EUR EUR

Amount (EUR) 8,000 - 1316 1316

Average contract rate 10,740 - 1,447 1,447

Exchange rate at year-end date 10,038 - 1,349 1,397

Expiration year 2023 EUR EUR DKK DKK

Amount – – - –

Average rate currency hedging – – - –

Exchange rate at year-end date – - –

Total derivative instruments Group
(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Change in value as at 31/12/2020 36,831 3,931

Total 36,831 3,931

Peas Industries uses currency derivatives to hedge against fluctuations in currency exchange rates. A derivative instrument means an 
unrealised value change relating to exchange hedging that is part of the cash flow hedges for the contracted flows. The exposure 
arises mainly in EUR from wind power projects within OX2. Exposure in DKK arises from Biond’s operations. Peas Industries applies 
hedge accounting for financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 9. This means, among other things, that changes in the value of 
derivatives that are obtained for hedging of cash flow risks are recognised in equity. 

The nominal value of outstanding forward exchange contracts amounts as at end of 31 December 2020 to SEK 1,043.8 million (1,266). 
The market value of the outstanding forward exchange contracts as at 31 December 2020 amounted to SEK 36.8 million (3.9). The 
information used for the valuation of derivative instruments is based on information from the banks that we consider to be in accord-
ance with a Level 2 valuation when it is based on the discounted cash flows with the help of market data per year-end date. There 
were no outstanding options as at 31 December 2020. 2020 has seen early reporting of currency hedges to profit where the cash flow 
has already taken place while the derivative fell due at a later time. This effect for 2019 amounted to SEK +7.3 million (SEK 0.7 million) 
after tax. At the time of the financial statements, the Group’s hedging was effective.
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Note 28 Advance payments from customers
Group

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Advance payments from clients’ projects OX2 468,419 371,472

Advance payments from customers, Enstar project 3,300 13,747

Total 471,719 385,219

Note 29 Other current liabilities
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Project financing, OX2* - 775,833 - –

Purchase price, acquisition of Åmot-Lingbo, OX2 - 51,125 - –

Contributions received from Swedish EPA, Biond – - –

Current portion of the licensing liabilities, Biond 9,408 9,408 - –

Current portion of financing of pre-treatment facility, Biond 2,700 2,700 - –

VAT 71,611 15,154 - 1,816

Energy tax - – - –

Withholding tax 5,018 4,484 284 460

Part of the short-term debt financial leasing 5,935 13,206 - –

Other items 538 2,595 - 2

Total 95,210 874,505 284 2,278

* Outstanding loan liabilities have been taken over by the customer in connection with the handover of the completed Castles project.

Note 30 Accrued expenses and pre-paid income
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Accrued project costs 76,708 32,433 - –

Accrued personnel costs, including social security payments 64,988 64,214 3,560 10,518

Prepaid state funding - 2,192 - –

Accrued costs of electricity sold 7,651 10,100 - –

Accrued consulting costs 3,553 7,374 650 954

Accrued construction costs, OX2 319,789 111,984 - –

Operating costs accrued 3,011 3,290 - –

Pre-paid income 8,310 719 - –

Other items 6,508 14,389 205 420

Total 490,518 246,691 4,415 11,892
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Note 31 Pledged assets and contingent liabilities
PLEDGED ASSETS

Group Parent company
(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Shares in subsidiaries 720,229 29,917 - –

Bank deposits - 83,925 - –

Total 720,229 113,842 - –

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Group Parent company

(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Performance guarantees 1,997,909 1,576,133 302,913 1,098,809

Total 1,997,909 1,576,133 302,913 1,098,809

The Peas Group mainly provides two types of guarantees that are subject to contingent liabilities and they are payment guarantees 
and performance guarantees.

Performance guarantee obligations are issued for the construction of wind farms, which are included in terms of nominal value under 
the contracts until the delivery of the wind farms has taken place. Performance guarantees are usually replaced by two-year guaran-
tees in connection with the hand over of the wind farm to its owner. 

In addition to these performance guarantees, Peas and its Group companies have provided payment guarantees in favour of counter-
parties in the contractor contracts for ongoing construction projects. The terms and conditions of these payment guarantees may 
vary, but they are generally linked to contract value and are impaired at the same rate as the payments are made. These payment 
 obligations fall within the control of the Group and it has been assessed that the Group can meet its obligations under the contracts, so 
that these are not included as contingent liabilities. 
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Note 32 Cash flow statement
ADJUSTMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN CASH FLOW

Group Parent company
(SEK thousand) 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Depreciation/impairment 30,740 23,858 817 744

Unrealised value changes -9,342 3,888 - –

Total 21,398 27,746 817 744

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST PAID AND INTEREST RECEIVED

Group
During the year the interest paid amounted to SEK 8,716 thousand (1,718) and interest received to SEK 968 thousand (744).

Parent company
During the year the interest paid amounted to SEK 2 thousand (1) and interest received to SEK 15,162 thousand (418), of which SEK 328 
thousand affected cash flow. 

CHANGE IN LIABILITIES
Group

(SEK thousand)
Long-term 

liabilities
Leasing 

liabilities
Current 

liabilities
Derivative 
liabilities Total

Liabilities as at 1 January 2019 538,481 2,560 201,566 15,695 758,302

Cash flow 116,372 -12,235 -140,000 -15,695 -51,558

New lease agreements 39,515 39,515

Transfer between current and long-term liabil-
ities -539,733 812,938 273,205

Liabilities as at 31 December 2019 115,120 29,840 874,505 0 1,019,465

Cash flow 1,007,581 -17,234 -233,129 -341 756,877

New lease agreements 2,976 2,976

Other changes -2,976 -546,166 682 -548,460

Liabilities as at 31 December 2020 1,122,701 12,606 95,210 341 1,230,857

Note 33 Events after the end of the financial year

In the light of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Peas Group is continuing to monitor events closely and taking action to minimise or elimi-
nate the impact on the company’s operations. The company complies with the guidelines of the Swedish Public Health Agency, WHO 
and ECDC (European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control). The spread of the coronavirus is still having a major impact on the 
global economy. There is considerable uncertainty regarding both extent and timing. In the short term, we are still seeing a relatively 
limited risk that the virus outbreak will lead to significant financial impact on the Group. Our operations are mainly in sectors of social 
importance such as energy supply and energy efficiency, which is why they are judged to be less affected. If the global financial 
market turmoil continues for a long time, the conditions for implementing new projects for OX2 and Enstar may change.
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Note 35 Approval of financial statements
The annual report was adopted by the Board of Directors and approved for publication on 09 April 2021.

Statement
The Board of Directors and the CEO hereby certify that the annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Swedish Annual 
Accounts Act and RFR 1.3 and 2.3 and gives a true and fair view of the financial position and results, and that the Directors’ Report gives 
a fair review of the development of the Group’s operations, position and results and describes significant risks and uncertainties facing 
the company. The Board of Directors and the CEO hereby certify that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the International Financial Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU and give a true and fair view of the Group’s  financial 
position and results, and that the Directors’ Report for the Group annual report gives a fair review of the development of the Group’s 
operations, position and results that describe significant risks and uncertainties facing the company. 

Stockholm, 09 April 2021

Johan Ihrfelt Thomas von Otter Anna-Karin Eliasson Celsing Johan Wieslander 
Chairman, 
Chief Executive Officer

Our audit report was submitted on 09 April 2021 
Deloitte AB

Jonas Ståhlberg 
Authorised Public Accountant

Note 34 Proposal for allocation of earnings (SEK)
Proposal for allocation of earnings (SEK)
The following earnings are at the disposal of the Annual General Meeting:

Unrestricted equity 2,582,305

Net profit for the year 2,406,042,469

Total 2,408,624,774

Buyback of shares (10,793 per share) 41,433,713

The Board proposes the following sum be carried 
forward to new account 2,367,191,061

Total 2,408,624,774

As regards the buyback of shares, it is estimated that 3,839 shares will be bought back.
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TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF PEAS INDUSTRIES AB  
CORP. REG. NO. 556829-4515

REPORT ON THE ANNUAL REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Statement
We have audited the annual report and the consolidated financial 
statements for Peas Industries AB for the financial year 
01/01/2020 to 31/12/2020. 

It is our belief that the financial statements have been drawn up 
in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and provide 
in all essential respects a fair picture of the parent company’s 
financial position at 31 December 2020 and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year in accordance with 
the Swedish Annual Accounts Act. The consolidated financial 
statements have been drawn up in accordance with the Swedish 
Annual Accounts Act and provide in all essential respects a fair 
picture of the Group’s financial position at 31 December 2020 and 
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year in 
accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act. The Board of 
Directors’ report is consistent with the other parts of the annual 
report and the consolidated financial statements.

We recommend that the Annual General Meeting adopts the 
Income Statement and the Balance Sheet for the parent 
company and the Group.

Grounds for our statements
We have carried out the audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISA) and generally accepted auditing 
standards in Sweden. Our liability in accordance with these 
standards is described in the section regarding the auditor’s 
responsibility. We are independent in relation to the parent 
company and the Group in accordance with the code of ethics in 
Sweden and have fulfilled our ethical responsibility in accord-
ance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to form a basis for our statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors and CEO
The Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for the annual 
report and the consolidated financial statements being drawn up 
and for ensuring that they give a true and fair view in accordance 
with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and, as regards the 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS as 
adopted by the EU. The Board of Directors and the CEO are also 

responsible for the internal control that they deem necessary for 
drawing up the annual report and consolidated financial state-
ments to ensure that they do not contain any material misstate-
ment, whether these are the result of irregularities or errors.

When preparing the annual report and the consolidated financial 
statements, the Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible 
for the assessment of the company’s and the Group’s ability to 
continue operations. They report, when applicable, conditions 
that may affect the company’s ability to continue in business and 
to use the assumption of continued operation. The assumption of 
continued operation is not applied if the board of directors and 
the CEO intend to liquidate the company, cease operations or 
have no realistic alternative but to do either of these.

The responsibility of the auditor
Our goal is to achieve a reasonable degree of certainty as to 
whether the annual report and the consolidated financial state-
ments, as a whole, do not contain any material misstatements, 
whether these are the result of irregularities or errors and to 
submit a report containing our statements. Reasonable certainty 
is a high degree of certainty but is no guarantee that an audit 
carried out in accordance with the ISA and generally accepted 
auditing standards in Sweden will always be able to detect a 
material misstatement, if there is one. Inaccuracies may occur 
as a result of irregularities or errors and are considered to be 
material if they, individually or together, can reasonably be 
expected to influence the financial decisions made by users on 
the basis of the annual report and consolidated financial state-
ments.

A further description of our responsibility for the audit of the 
annual report and consolidated financial statement is available at 
the Swedish Inspectorate of Auditors’ website: www.revisorsins-
pektionen.se//revisornsansvar. This description forms part of the 
audit report. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

Statement
In addition to our audit of the annual report and the consolidated 
financial statements, we have also carried out an audit of the 
board of directors’ and the CEO’s management of Peas Industries 
AB for the financial year 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 and 
of the proposal for the appropriation of the profit or loss.

Auditor’s report

AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDIT REPORT

We recommend to the Annual General Meeting that the profit is 
allocated in accordance with the proposal in the Directors’ 
Report and that the members of the Board of Directors and the 
CEO are discharged from liability for the financial year. 

Grounds for our statements
We have carried out the audit in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards in Sweden. Our liability in accord-
ance with these standards is described in the section regarding 
the auditor’s responsibility. We are independent in relation to the 
parent company and the Group in accordance with the code of 
ethics in Sweden and have fulfilled our ethical responsibility in 
accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to form a basis for our statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors and CEO
The Board is responsible for the proposal for the appropriation of 
the company’s profit or loss. In the case of a proposal for divi-
dend, this includes an assessment of whether the dividend is 
justifiable, taking into account the requirements that the nature, 
scope and risks to the company’s and Group’s operations set to 
the size of the parent company’s and the Group’s equity, consoli-
dation needs, liquidity and financial position in general.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the organisation of the 
company and management of the affairs of the company. This 
includes, among other things, ongoing assessment of the 
company’s and the Group’s financial situation and ensuring that 
the organisation of the company is designed so that the 
accounts, the management of company’s funds and its financial 
affairs are checked in an appropriate manner. The CEO will 
manage the company on a day-to-day basis in accordance with 
the Board of Directors’ guidelines and instructions, and take the 
measures necessary for the company accounts to be completed 
in accordance with the law and for the management of the 
company’s funds to be arranged in a satisfactory manner.

The responsibility of the auditor
Our goal in the case of audit of the company’s management, and 
thus our opinion concerning discharge from liability, is to collect 
the evidence in order to assess with a reasonable degree of 
certainty whether any board member or the managing director 
has in any material respect:
•  taken any action or been guilty of any omission that could give 

rise to any liability to the company or

 •  has in any other way acted in contravention of the Swedish 
Companies Act, the Annual Accounts Act or the Articles of 
Association.

Our goal with regard to the audit of the proposal for the appropri-
ation of the profit or loss, and thus our statement on this, is to 
ensure, with a reasonable degree of certainty, that the proposal 
is compatible with the Swedish Companies Act.

Reasonable certainty is a high degree of certainty, but there is no 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Auditing Standards in Sweden will always detect any 
acts or omissions that may give rise to any liability to the 
company or to a proposal for the appropriation of the profit or 
loss not being compatible with the Swedish Companies Act.

A further description of our responsibility for the audit of the 
annual report and consolidated financial statement is available at 
the Swedish Inspectorate of Auditors’ website: www.revisorsins-
pektionen.se/revisornsansvar. This description forms part of the 
audit report. 

Stockholm, April 2020, according to electronic signing
Deloitte AB

Jonas Ståhlberg
Authorised Public Accountant
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